
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public 
except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a 

public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 

to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the 
ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 1 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Friday, August 5, 2022 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation - Pastor Jonathon Dawson, Lakepoint Community Church 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (JW) 

 

Mill Rate Public Hearing 
5. Presentation of Proposed 2022 Mill Rate (staff-CM & Fin) 

6. Comments from the Public 

7. Comments from Commissioners and/or Staff 

 

Budget Work Session 
8. Budget Discussions 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
9. Public Comments 

10. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - July 19, 2022 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - July 19, 2022 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of Minutes - July 26, 2022 Comp Plan Meeting (staff-CC) 

d. Approval of 2022 Alcohol License(s) (staff-CC) 

11. Request from Tax Commissioner to write-off uncollectable accounts (TC) 

12. Approval to Surplus Parcel #058A192 on W Daylight Drive (staff-CM) 

13. Request for Road Acceptance of Oakwood Drive (staff-CC) 

14. Review of Community Health Assessment (BW) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
15. County Manager Report 

16. County Attorney Report 

17. Commissioner Announcements 

 

Closing 
18. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

10. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - July 19, 2022 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)

b. Approval of Minutes - July 19, 2022 Executive Session (staff-CC)

c. Approval of Minutes - July 26, 2022 Comp Plan Meeting (staff-CC)

d. Approval of 2022 Alcohol License(s) (staff-CC)

2



Draft Minutes Page 1 of 6  

July 19, 2022   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Tuesday, July 19, 2022 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Tuesday, July 19, 2022 at approximately 

6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, 

Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Adam Nelson 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 6:30 p.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

3. Invocation 

County Attorney Adam Nelson gave the invocation. 

 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (BS) 

Commissioner Sharp led the Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 

3



Draft Minutes Page 2 of 6  

July 19, 2022   

 

5. Special Presentation - Chamber of Commerce 

Chamber of Commerce President Maggie Milner presented the Chamber’s Semi-Annual Report 

for 2022 and announced that their new website was now live: visiteatonton.com.   She also 

presented personalized gold shovels from the recent Fire/EMS/Coroner Station groundbreaking 

ceremony to the Commissioners, County Manager, Fire Chief, EMS Director, and Coroner. 

(Copy of report made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to __________.) 

 

Zoning Public Hearing 

The Zoning Public Hearing opened at approximately 6:47 p.m. 
6. Request by Rocker Construction, Inc. for conditional use at 368 Harmony Road [Map 072, 

Parcel 015, District 1] (staff-P&D) 

The applicant is requesting to withdraw this item without prejudice. 

Mr. Walt Rocker asked to withdraw this request without prejudice.  No one else signed in to 

speak on this item. 

Motion to approve the request to withdraw without prejudice the request by Rocker 

Construction, Inc. for conditional use at 368 Harmony Road [Map 072, Parcel 015]. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

7. Request by William & Barbara Vargo to rezone 10.60 acres at 230 Quesenberry Drive from 

R-1 to AG [Map 115B, Parcel 080,081,082,083, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

The applicant is requesting to withdraw this item without prejudice. 

Mr. Bill Vargo asked to withdraw this request without prejudice.  Several people signed in to 

speak against the rezoning request.  Chairman Webster explained that if the board approves the 

request to withdraw, then there is no rezoning to speak against.  He advised that he would allow 

them to make their comments during the Public Comment portion of the meeting if they so 

desired. 

Motion to approve the request to withdraw without prejudice the request by William & 

Barbara Vargo to rezone 10.60 acres at 230 Quesenberry Drive from R-1 to AG [Map 

115B, Parcel 080,081,082,083]. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
The Zoning Public Hearing closed at approximately 6:58 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4



Draft Minutes Page 3 of 6  

July 19, 2022   

 

Code of Ordinances Public Hearing 

The Code of Ordinances Public Hearing opened at approximately 6:58 p.m. 
8. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 28 

(Development Regulations) and Chapter 32 (Fire Protection and Prevention) 

No one signed in to speak for or against this item. 

Motion to adopt changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 28 

(Development Regulations) and Chapter 32 (Fire Protection and Prevention). 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of changes made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

The Code of Ordinances Public Hearing closed at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
9. Public Comments 

Mr. David Adair and Mr. Randall Lovell commented against AG rezoning on Quesenberry Drive 

or any residential community. 

Mrs. Edie Adair, Mr. Miguel Barrios, and Mr. Stuart Keener signed in on the prior rezoning item 

but declined to speak at this time. 

 

10. Consent Agenda  

a. Approval of Minutes - July 1, 2022 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - July 11, 2022 Budget Work Session (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of Minutes - July 12, 2022 Budget Work Session (staff-CC) 

d. Authorization for Chairman to sign Agreement for Section 5311 Transit Operating 

between Georgia Department of Transportation and Putnam County (staff-Transit) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of agreement made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

11. Request to begin the road abandonment process for Battlesmith Road (staff-PW) 

(tabled from 6-21-2022) 

Mr. Mark Smith spoke against the abandonment of Battlesmith Road and requested some 

maintenance for the road. 

Public Works Director Tony Clack recommended withdrawal of the request to abandon 

Battlesmith Road. 

Motion to terminate the proposed road abandonment process of Battlesmith Road.  

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

 

5



Draft Minutes Page 4 of 6  

July 19, 2022   

 

12. Awarding of Solicitation 22-36001-001 Ambulance (staff-EMS) 

EMS Director Brad Murphey advised that bids were solicitated and opened last week for a new 

ambulance.  Only one bid was received from Custom Truck & Body Works at $237,448.00. 

Motion to award Solicitation 22-36001-001 Ambulance to Custom Truck & Body Works in 

the amount of $237,448.00. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

13. Awarding of Solicitation 22-36001-002 Ambulance Remount (staff-EMS) 

EMS Director Brad Murphey advised that bids were solicited and opened last week for an 

ambulance remount.  This is to replace an ambulance that was wrecked around the first of the 

year and will be a new chassis to mount the old ambulance box on.  He further advised that 

approximately $74,000 was received from the insurance company for the wrecked ambulance. 

Motion to award Solicitation 22-36001-002 Ambulance Remount to Custom Truck & Body 

Works in the amount of $114,080.00. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

14. Appointment to the Region Two Behavioral Health and Developmental Disabilities Planning 

Board (staff-CC) 

Mrs. Gloria Morrell was nominated for appointment to the Region Two Behavioral Health and 

Developmental Disabilities Planning Board. 

Nomination made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea for Gloria Morrell: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, 

Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 

 

Reports/Announcements 
15. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute reported the following: 

 Spoke with Mr. Corbett Reynolds of GDOT regarding the Highway 441 water line 

relocation and even though costs have increased, Putnam County is still only responsible 

for 10% of the costs of relocation only.  This does not include the bore under the road. 

 Mr. Reynolds also advised that the Highway 44 project is in Right-of-Way acquisition 

now and they are working on plans for a roundabout at Linger Longer Road.  GDOT will 

share once those are ready. 

 

16. County Attorney Report 

No report but did request an Executive Session. 

 

17. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner McElhenney: thanked the staff for the smooth budget work sessions. 

 

Commissioner Brown: none 

 

6



Draft Minutes Page 5 of 6  

July 19, 2022   

 

Commissioner Sharp: thanked staff and the commissioners for prayers and condolences for his 

sister’s passing. 

 

Commissioner Wooten: none 

 

Chairman Webster: none 

 

Executive Session 

18. Enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Personnel, Litigation, or Real 

Estate 

Motion to enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Litigation and Real 

Estate. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting closed at approximately 7:34 p.m. 

 

 

19. Presentation of new Aerial Fire Truck 

Prior to the Executive Session, all attendants went outside, and the Putnam County Fire 

Department presented the new 2022 Pierce Ascendant 100 FT Heavy Duty Aerial Tower. Some 

of the features include enhanced driver visibility, shorter wheelbase and rear overhang, superior 

scrub area coverage, and easy engine serviceability. 

 

20.  Reopen meeting and execute Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of 

the meeting 

Motion to reopen the meeting and execute the Affidavit concerning the subject matter of 

the closed portion of the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting reconvened at approximately 8:38 p.m. 

 

 

21. Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 

No action taken. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7



Draft Minutes Page 6 of 6  

July 19, 2022   

 

Closing 
22. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 8:39 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

8



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 

 

 

 

 

The draft minutes of the July 19, 2022 Executive Session 

are available for Commissioner review in the Clerk’s 

office. 
 

9

mailto:lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us
http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


Draft Comp Plan Minutes Page 1 of 2  

July 26, 2022   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 ◊ 2:00 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met with the Middle Georgia Regional 

Commission on Tuesday, July 26, 2022 at approximately 2:00 PM in the Putnam County 

Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

Planning & Development Director Lisa Jackson 

Planning & Development Assistant Director Courtney Andrews 

Public Works Foreman Anthony Frazier 

 

MGRC STAFF PRESENT 

Government Services Specialist Joe Black 

Government Services Specialist Dean Nelson 

Intern Thomas Neaves 

 

OTHERS PRESENT 

Chamber of Commerce President Maggie Milner 

Economic Development Director Matt Poyner 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 2:00 p.m. and turned it over to 

the Middle Georgia Regional Commission staff. 

 

10



Draft Comp Plan Minutes Page 2 of 2  

July 26, 2022   

 

Comprehensive Plan 
2. Community Work Program 

Introductions were made and the 2022 Joint Comprehensive Plan goals, needs, and opportunities 

were discussed.  The Community Work Program from the 2017 Comprehensive Plan was also 

discussed and updated as needed.  No action was taken. 

(Copies of documents made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________ to 

__________.) 

 

Closing 
3. Adjournment 

Chairman Webster adjourned the meeting at approximately 3:42 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

11



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Approval of 2022 Alcohol Licenses 

 
The following alcohol license applications (which are available for review in 
the County Clerk’s office) have been approved by the Sheriff, Fire Marshal 

and/or Building Inspector, and Tax Commissioner and are ready for BOC 
approval: 
 

Individual 

Name 

Business Name Address License Type 

Ted Yarbrough 

Yarbrough & Sons 

and Finish Line 

LLC 

338 Glenwood 

Springs Road 

Retail Consumption on Premises 

of Malt Beverages and/or Wine 

and Distilled Spirits 

 
 

12

mailto:lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us
http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


File Attachments for Item:

11. Request from Tax Commissioner to write-off uncollectable accounts (TC)

13



Map / Parcel Number Year of Tax Bill Type of Tax Original Tax Bill Unpaid Balance Reason for Write-Off

Bill Number

19238MH 2017 Mobile Home 276.89 411.64                    Tax Assessor Clerical Error

E006 500 M01 2017 Mobile Home 69.07 123.36                    Nothing / no one to levy

E006 500 M01 2018 Mobile Home 60.71 105.91                    Nothing / no one to levy

051 008 M01 2010 Mobile Home 48.38 388.50                    MH Burned in 2012

051 008 M01 2011 Mobile Home 50.11 121.31                    MH Burned in 2012

051 008 M01 2012 Mobile Home 49.97 115.02                    MH Burned in 2012

050A 034 2015 Real Property 197.78 229.36                    Lost HS due to New Owner

5899-1 MH 2010 Mobile Home 122.96 247.12                    MH Repossessed in 2010 

5899-1 MH 2011 Mobile Home 129.92 261.05                    MH Repossessed in 2010 

5237-1 MH 2011 Mobile Home 221.79 81.91                      Retro ACO - failed to collect

5237-1 MH 2012 Mobile Home 229.71 488.98                    Retro ACO - failed to collect

5237-1 MH 2013 Mobile Home 283.44 564.66                    Retro ACO - failed to collect

062 021 2017 Real Property 1,025.94 1,606.40                 Transferred to exempt organization

2844MH 2006 Mobile Home 25.58 70.64                      MH Derelict & Owner Dead

2844MH 2007 Mobile Home 23.55 62.21                      MH Derelict & Owner Dead

2844MH 2008 Mobile Home 21.39 54.93                      MH Derelict & Owner Dead

2844MH 2009 Mobile Home 30.82 324.51                    MH Derelict & Owner Dead

2844MH 2010 Mobile Home 19.98 63.09                      MH Derelict & Owner Dead

2844MH 2011 Mobile Home 21.12 63.15                      MH Derelict & Owner Dead

2844MH 2012 Mobile Home 32.54 83.93                      MH Derelict & Owner Dead

2844MH 2013 Mobile Home 40.14 94.63                      MH Derelict & Owner Dead

2844MH 2014 Mobile Home 24.65 61.91                      MH Derelict & Owner Dead

2844MH 2015 Mobile Home 25.27 274.99                    MH Derelict & Owner Dead

2844MH 2016 Mobile Home 24.19 55.51                      MH Derelict & Owner Dead

2844MH 2017 Mobile Home 25.29 55.24                      MH Derelict & Owner Dead

2844MH 2018 Mobile Home 25.28 53.47                      MH Derelict & Owner Dead

2844MH 2019 Mobile Home 26.23 36.28                      MH Derelict & Owner Dead

2844MH 2020 Mobile Home 36.46 63.52                      MH Derelict & Owner Dead

2844MH 2021 Mobile Home 36.12 60.42                      MH Derelict & Owner Dead

6037MH 2014 Mobile Home 27.00 514.14                    MH Burned Sometime in Past

6037MH 2015 Mobile Home 10.72 250.52                    MH Burned Sometime in Past

OFFICE OF THE PUTNAM COUNTY TAX COMMISSIONER

REQUEST TO WRITE-OFF BAD DEBTS AS OF August 5, 2022

14



Map / Parcel Number Year of Tax Bill Type of Tax Original Tax Bill Unpaid Balance Reason for Write-Off

Bill Number

OFFICE OF THE PUTNAM COUNTY TAX COMMISSIONER

REQUEST TO WRITE-OFF BAD DEBTS AS OF August 5, 2022

6037MH 2016 Mobile Home 10.68 34.28                      MH Burned Sometime in Past

6037MH 2017 Mobile Home 8.31 30.07                      MH Burned Sometime in Past

6037MH 2018 Mobile Home 8.17 29.30                      MH Burned Sometime in Past

6037MH 2019 Mobile Home 9.05 13.26                      MH Burned Sometime in Past

6037MH 2020 Mobile Home 8.91 28.85                      MH Burned Sometime in Past

6037MH 2021 Mobile Home 8.77 28.27                      MH Burned Sometime in Past

4422MH 2015 Mobile Home 40.74 86.00                      Nothing / no one to levy

4422MH 2016 Mobile Home 40.58 81.27                      Nothing / no one to levy

4422MH 2017 Mobile Home 41.92 80.05                      Nothing / no one to levy

4422MH 2018 Mobile Home 41.15 76.05                      Nothing / no one to levy

4422MH 2019 Mobile Home 45.59 78.83                      Nothing / no one to levy

4422MH` 2020 Mobile Home 44.89 74.16                      Nothing / no one to levy

71631P 2018 Boat 168.96 479.78                    Boat sold 2020 / nothing to levy

71631P 2019 Boat 141.87 216.01                    Boat sold 2020 / nothing to levy

71631P 2020 Boat 125.24 183.13                    Boat sold 2020 / nothing to levy

73105P 2021 Boat 222.56 324.24                    Boat sold 2020 / nothing to levy

E006 605 M01 2012 Mobile Home 19.79 200.53                    Parcel Deleted 2018

E006 605 M01 2013 Mobile Home 27.62 67.63                      Parcel Deleted 2018

E006 605 M01 2014 Mobile Home 27.48 64.08                      Parcel Deleted 2018

E006 605 M01 2015 Mobile Home 27.55 60.90                      Parcel Deleted 2018

E006 605 M01 2016 Mobile Home 30.09 65.07                      Parcel Deleted 2018

E006 605 M01 2017 Mobile Home 30.07 63.02                      Parcel Deleted 2018

E006 605 M01 2018 Mobile Home 31.89 63.46                      Parcel Deleted 2018

1026801MH 2018 Mobile Home 137.20 215.22                    Double-billed

10254MH 2019 Mobile Home 127.59 191.66                    Acct Deleted in 2020

10378MH 2019 Mobile Home 173.60 253.56                    Acct Deleted in 2019

E006 481 001 2017 Real Property 136.95 230.89                    No longer billed

091 013 M01 2018 Mobile Home 267.51 413.01                    Parcel Deleted 2018

P1 43510 2020 Boat 116.92 172.23                    Boat sold 2020 / nothing to levy

5,364.65 10,893.12               

15



File Attachments for Item:

12. Approval to Surplus Parcel #058A192 on W Daylight Drive (staff-CM)

16



17



File Attachments for Item:

13. Request for Road Acceptance of Oakwood Drive (staff-CC)

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
Putnam County 
117 Putnam Drive 
Eatonton, GA 31024 

STATE OF GEORGIA 
COUNTY OF PUTNAM 

Right of Way Deed 

THIS INDENTURE, made this ___ day of May, 2022, Harmony Farms 
Development, LLC, as party or parties of the first part (hereinafter referred to as "Granter"), and 
Putnam County, Georgia, as party or parties of the second part (hereinafter referred to as 
"Grantee"). 

WlTNESSETH: That the said Granter for and in consideration of the sum of One Dollar 
($1.00) and other valuable consideration, cash in hand paid, the receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, has bargained, sold and does by these presents bargain, sell, remise, release, and 
forever quit-claim to the said Grantee, its heirs and assigns, all the right, title, interest, claim or demand 
which the said Granter has or may have had in and to: 

All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in the 306th G.M.D. Putnam County, Georgia and 
being the 60 foot right of way of Oakwood Drive as shown on a Plat of Phase I, Harmony Farms 
prepared by Trinity Land Consultants, Inc. recorded in Plat Book 30, Page 60, Putnam County, 
Georgia Records which recorded plat is incorporated herein and made a part of this description. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said described premises unto the said Grantee, its heirs and 
assigns, so that neither the said Granter nor its successors, nor any other person claiming under it 
shall at any time, claim or demand any right, title or interest to the aforesaid described premises or its 
appurtenances. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Granter has hereunto set its hand and affixed its seal the 
day and year above written. 

Signed, sealed and delivered 
in the presence of: 

Witness 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

Harmony Farms Development, LLC 

__________ (SEAL) 
BY: 

Its: 

35



36



37



38



File Attachments for Item:

14. Review of Community Health Assessment (BW)

39



GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

NCHD Community Health 
Assessment

2022

Presented by 
Amber Erickson, DrPH, MPH

Director of Epidemiology, Community 
Assessment, and Research Methods

40



GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Health Status Assessment

● The Community Health Status Assessment identifies:
○ Priority community health issues 
○ Quality of life issues

● Questions answered include: 
○ "How healthy are our residents?" 
○ "What does the health status of our community look like?"” 

● Secondary data from several third party sources was sources were used in this report

41



GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

NCHD Population 42



GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

NCHD Population

• From 2015-2020, NCHD has had an 
overall increase in population size, with 
most of the growth being in Houston, 
Jasper, Monroe, Peach, and Putnam 
Counties. Changes in population could 
mean decreased access to health 
services. 

• An increase in population could make it 
harder to access the services being 
provided due the limited amount. 

• Decreases in population could have an 
overall depletion of services.

43



GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Age Distribution

● Counties with the largest aging 
populations in NCHD are also some of 
the most rural counties within the district 
with limited access to healthcare 
resources. These counties are Hancock, 
Jasper, Peach, Putnam, and Twiggs 
counties.

● NCHD is considered an aging population, with a 
16% increase over the past 5 years in the over 
65 population and a 0.4% decrease in those 
under 18 and 0.1% decrease in those that are 
18-64.

44



GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Median Income

Higher incomes allow easier 
access to needed services. 
The median income in the 
state of Georgia is $58,700. 
NCHD has a lower median 
income of $45,929. Only one 
county within NCHD has a 
median income higher than 
the state, Houston.

45



GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Access to Care 46



GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Poverty 47



GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Poverty 48



GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Single Parent Household

39% of NCHD residents 
under 18 years of age lived 
in a single parent 
household between 2015-
2019, compared to 30% of 
Georgia residents under 18 
years of age during the 
same time period.

49



GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Housing 50



GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Income 51



GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Nutrition Assistance 52



GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Life Expectancy
The Average Life Expectancy in Georgia is 77.9 years. The average in NCHD is 76.9 years, just short of the 
state average. Individually some counties in NCHD have a higher life expectancy than the state average. 
(e.g., Putnam county at 79.3 years). 

53



GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Violent Crime

Crime and Safety 54


	Top
	Item #10.	2022-08-05 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 07-19-2022 BOC Minutes
	Executive Session Minutes Agenda Item Template
	DRAFT 07-26-2022 BOC Comp Plan Minutes
	Agenda Item for Alcohol Licenses

	Item #11.	2022-08-05 BOC TC Write Offs
	2021 request to write-off bad debts

	Item #12.	2022-08-05 BOC Surplus Daylight Dr
	058A 192 map

	Item #13.	2022-08-05 BOC Oakwood Drive
	Oakwood Drive Application 051222_Redacted
	Oakwood Drive-Public Works Report 052422

	Item #14.	2022-08-05 BOC Health Assessment
	Community Health Assessment Presentation_July Community Presentation-Slides for BOC 080522

	Bottom

